
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

December 17, 2019 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Dec 17 8:00 a.m. Regular Meeting/Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 14 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 14 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 28 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Feb 11 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 
 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 
D. MINUTES – December 10, 2019 – Regular Board Meeting 

 

E. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 

 
 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 

 
 Resolution to Transfer Funds to the Rainy Day Fund - The Business office 

recommends Board adoption of a resolution for year-end Rainy Day Fund 

transfer. 
 

 Resolution to Transfer Amounts from the Education Fund to the Operating 

Fund- The Business office recommends Board adoption of a resolution for 
year-end true up transfer Education Fund to the Operating Fund. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

 Monthly Insurance Report 
 

  



BOARD AGENDA December 17, 2019 
 
 

2 
 

F. OLD BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy 3413S – Support Staff Working Hours, Compensatory Time, 
and Overtime - The administration presents proposed revisions to Board 
Policy 3413S- Support Staff Working Hours, Compensatory Time, and 

Overtime, as presented at the December 10th regular meeting. 
 

G. NEW BUSINESS 

 
 Board Policy 3410.01A – Professional Staff Contracts and Compensation 

Plans (Administrators) – The administration presents proposed revisions to 

Board Policy 3410.01A - Professional Staff Contracts and Compensation 
Plans (Administrators) and asks to waive 2nd reading. 
 

 Appointment of the Indiana School Board Legislative Liaison for 2020 
 

 Overnight Trip Request - The administration seeks Board approval of an 

overnight trip request. 
 

H. PERSONNEL 

 
 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended 
by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
administration. 
 

I. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 

 
 From Superintendent and Staff  

 

 From Board 
 

J. ADJOURNMENT 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

December 10, 2019 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Kellie L. Mullins Babette S. Boling 
Present: Carolyn R. Morris Susan C. Daiber 

  Rodney J. Dale 
  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 
   

Absent: Douglas K. Weaver  
   

 

Roll Call 

Vice President Kellie Mullins called the regular meeting of the Board of 

School Trustees to order. 
 

Call to 

Order 

Doug Thorne, district counsel/chief of staff, recited the Elkhart Promise. 

 

The Elkhart 

Promise 

Mrs. Mullins discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

 

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representatives 

Dylan Rost from Memorial High School (MHS) and Irlyn Milfort from 
Central High School (CHS).  Mr. Rost, a junior, plays football and 
baseball, is involved in student government and the Varsity Club, and is 

currently ranked fifth in his class.  Mr. Rost reported the following 
activities: the music department has moved in to the band and choir 
portion of the new facility; the pep band performed at the last Memorial 

vs. Central basketball game along with 40 alumni; the choir presented 
the final Elkhart Memorial Madrigal Dinner; the drumline performed at 
the Winterfest parade; heard Nathan Harmon of Your Life Speaks; the 

National Honor Society held a very successful blood drive; clubs are 
busy with holiday activities; and winter sports are on-going.  In 
conclusion, Mr. Rost expressed how excited he is to be a Lion and 

represent Elkhart High School in his last year of high school.  Irlyn 
Milfort, a junior, reported on the winter orchestra and band concerts, the 
basketball, swim meet and wrestling match all going on tonight.  Ms. 

Milfort reported Central will host the joint SSAC meeting on Thursday to 
discuss the plans for activities to bring the two student bodies together 
before the merger. 

 

Superintendent’s 

Student Advisory 
Council 
 

  



2 
 

Mia Morgan-Perez, a senior at Central, selected to attend the National 
Student leadership Academy in Washington, DC last week gave a 

presentation on her trip.  Ms. Morgan-Perez was selected by Jobs for 
America’s Graduates (JAG) specialist, Jennifer Kemble.  Ms. Morgan-
Perez presented slides from her recent trip.  She participated in a 

competition with 1,000 JAG students on employability skills including 
resume and cover letter writing, completing a job application and a 
mock interview.  When asked by a Board member her biggest take-away 

from the experience, she stated connecting with other participants was 
easier than anticipated and took her out of her comfort zone. 
 

Student 
Recognition 

 

Dan Burton, band director at Central and Pierre Moran, introduced Emily 
Anderson, Myla McMullen, Cleo Kirkton, and Savannah Tully, student 
members of the committee responsible for selecting the instrumental 

music for the Elkhart High School fight song.  Other members of the 
committee include: Cary Anderson, Kelly Berheide, Susan Daiber, 
Jacquie Rost, Brian Buckley, Kurt Weimer, David Elliott and Brenda 

Kolbe.  The students outlined the process and decision making used 
during the search, including copyright privileges and ownership of the 
fight song ‘War Eagle’ from Auburn University.  The committee listed to 

recordings of 194 present college fight songs before narrowing list to 15 
and then to 4 for the final vote.  Robert Allen composed the song in the 

mid 1950’s, his widow stated she was ‘thrilled’ to have her husband’s 
song represent the theme for the new Elkhart High School.  The final 
approval from one of the owners has been withheld pending the 

submission of the lyrics.  Mr. Ken Dye from Notre Dame has offered to 
arrange the new school song at no cost to Elkhart Community Schools.  
The community will be invited to submit their lyrics or words in the near 

future.  A recording of the instrumental music was played for the Board 
along with the video being released in January. 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the instrumental music for the 
Elkhart High School fight song. 
 

Fight Song  
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the minutes from the 
November 26, 2019 – Regular Board Meeting. 

 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$6,183,047.68 as shown on the December 10, 2019, claims listing.  
(Codified File 1920-65) 

 

Payment of 
Claims 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS): $500 from the 

Northern Indiana Volleyball Association to Eastwood for their volleyball 
program; $1,500 from Virtual Benefits Administrators through Patrick 
Tibbs for the Early College Program at Memorial; and 40 knitted hats 

from Jane Slabaugh and friends for distribution through social workers 
to children in need. 
 

Gift Acceptance 



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an extra-curricular purchase 
request from Memorial to purchase garment racks and accessories to 

store choral formalwear in the new music department in the amount of 
$1,072.70. 
 

Extra Curricular 
Purchase 

By unanimous action, the Board awarded the bid for the purchase of 
gasoline and diesel fuel for calendar year 2020 to Ceres Solutions 
(formerly known as North Central Co-op) at a fixed cost of $1.995 for 

unleaded and $2.494 for diesel.  (Codified File 1920-66) 
 

Award of Fuel 
Bid 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 

waived second reading of the following Compensation Plans: 
3422.01S - Food Service Employees’ Compensation Plan 
3422.02S - Mechanics’ Compensation Plan 

3422.03S - Bus Drivers’ Compensation Plan 
3422.04S - Bus Helpers’ Compensation Plan 
3422.05S - Support Staff Salary Schedule 

3422.06S - Secretarial/Business Compensation Plan 
3422.07S - Executive Assistants’ Salary Schedule 
3422.08S – Paraprofessionals’ Compensation Plan 

3422.09S - Technical Assistants’ Compensation Plan 
3422.10S – Registered Nurses’ Compensation Plan 

3422.11S - Social Workers’ Compensation Plan 
3422.12S – Employees in Miscellaneous Positions Compensation 

Plan 

3422.13S - Therapists’ Compensation Plan 
3422.14S - Employees in Tech. Services Positions Compensation 

Plan 

3422.15S – Permanent Substitute Teachers’ Compensation Plan 
Mr. Thorne highlighted the changes to support staff compensation: a 
1.9% increase to all wage and salary ranges; revisions to the definition 

of immediate family; revision to bereavement leave language; revision 
to personal leave allocations; revision of sick leave allocation for full 
time employees.  In specific areas: mechanics classification changing 

from three pay ranges to one; bus drivers – increasing trip pay by 50 
cents; executive assistants – revision of severance and retirement 
language; paraprofessionals – addition of an attendance incentive; 

registered nurses – revision to compensation language for national 
School Nurse Certification and change to schedule placement language. 
 

Compensation 

Policies 
 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Board Policy 3413S – 
Support Staff Working Hours, Compensatory Time and Overtime, for 
initial consideration. 

 

Board Policy 
3413S 

The Board reviewed proposed revisions to Administrative Regulation 
GDBA-10 – Miscellaneous Position Pay Schedule.  Mr. Thorne noted the 

revisions include removing lifeguard positions from the schedule and 
increased compensation for food service subs. 
 

Administrative 
Regulation 

GDBA-10 
 



4 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the tentative Agreement with 
the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees 

(AFL-CIO, Local #2925).  Mr. Thorne noted the changes to the custodial 
agreement include the 1.9%pay increase, and revisions to the definition 
of immediate family and bereavement.  (Codified File 1920-67) 

 

Custodial 
Agreement 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an overnight trip request for a 
North Side choir student to travel to Fort Wayne on 1/16-1/17/20, to 

perform with the All-State Middle School Honor Choir. 
 

Overnight Trip 
Request 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 

accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the December 10, 2019 listings.  (Codified File 1920-
68) 

 

Conference 

Leave Requests 

By a 5 to 1 vote (Rodney Dale opposed) the Board approved the 
following personnel recommendations of the administration: 

 

Personnel 
Report 

A consent agreement regarding unpaid time for a certified staff 
member.  (Codified File 1920-69) 

Consent 
Agreement 

 
An administrative transfer for Anthony England to Assistant 

Superintendent of Exceptional Learners. 
 

Administrative 

Transfer 
 

Employment of certified staff member Abigail Gerig, grade 5 at 

Beardsley, for the 2019-2020 school year effective 1/16/20. 
 

Certified 

Employment 
 

Retirement of certified staff member James McClain, math at North 

Side, effective 12/20/19 with 23 years of service. 
 

Certified 

Retirement 
 

Maternity leave for certified staff member, MiColette Berry, 

Kindergarten at Beardsley, beginning 1/9/20 and ending 6/3/20. 
 

Certified Leave 

 

Leave for certified staff member, Jami Young, Homebound at ESC, 

beginning 1/6/20 and ending 6/3/20. 
 

Certified Leave 

 

Employment of the following nine (9) classified employees 

successfully completed their probationary period on dates 
indicated: 

Danette Freel - food service at Central, 11/29/19 

Minnie Hutch - food service at North Side, 12/3/19 
Kathleen Kelly - paraprofessional at Osolo, 12/2/19 
Shelly Piggie - bus helper at Transportation, 12/2/19 

Paul Shelley - social worker at Pinewood, 12/9/19 
Lauren Smith - food service at Commissary, 12/2/19 
Cathy Snyder - paraprofessional at Woodland, 12/10/19 

Kelly Vollstedt - food service at Beardsley, 12/9/19 
Amber White - food service at Memorial, 12/9/19 
 

Classified 

Employment 



5 
 

Resignation of the following three (3) classified employees 
effective on dates indicated: 

Lois Keith - paraprofessional at Roosevelt, 11/26/19 
Roderic Roberson - energy/risk management specialist at 

ESC, 12/31/19 

Brenda Snider - bus helper at Transportation, 11/15/19 
 

Classified 
Resignations 

 

Retirement of the following three (3) classified employees effective 

on dates indicated with years of service in parenthesis: 
Linda DeRomero - paraprofessional at Pierre Moran, 

12/20/19, (14) 

Eulah Mitchell - social worker at Pierre Moran, 12/31/19, (23) 
Nyta Tilford - secretary at Monger, 1/17/20, (33) 
 

Classified 

Retirements 
 

An audience staff member stated the mascot issue was decided 18 
months ago and it is time to move on to ‘What’s Next?’ 
 

From the 
Audience 

Board member Rocky Enfield spoke regarding the efforts of Crossroads 
Community Church assisting the students at the Academy at Tipton 
including mentoring and after school programs.  Each student will be 

receiving an Eddie Bauer backpack filled with food and supplies for the 
holiday break. Mr. Enfield also commented on the improvements in 

student behavior and the dedication of the staff at Tipton.  In closing, he 
challenged others to be a part of the solution. 
 

From the Board 

  



6 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:25 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Kellie L. Mullins, Vice President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Secretary 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Babette S. Boling, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Susan C. Daiber, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 

Signatures 

 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  December 12, 2019 
 
TO:  Dr. Steve Thalheimer 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
FROM:  Anthony England, Assistant Superintendent 
 
RE:  Donation Approval 
 
 
We recently received a donation of 60 hats and 62 scarves hand made by Ruth Ann Owens for 

distribution to Elkhart Community School children.  They will be distributed through our social  

workers to children in need.   

 

I am requesting an appropriate letter of acknowledgment and appreciation be sent to: 

 

 Ruth Ann Owens 

 700 Liberty Street 

 Elkhart, IN  46514 















Proposed School Fundraising Activities
December 17, 2019, Meeting of Board of School Trustees

School/Organiz
ation Fundraising Activity Description/Purpose

Date(s) of 
Activity Date Submitted Sponsor(s)

Cleveland Students will sell Java Joe's Coffee to friends 
and family to help earn money for the 6th 
grade field trip

1/13/19 -1
/31/19

12/11/2019 Jayme Iannarelli

Please note the following fundraisers are 
presented for confirmation only.

Cleveland They will sell Christmas grams to parents to 
send do their students via sale in the room 
and through a letter to the parents.

12/9/19 - 
12/19/19

12/4/2019 Jayme Iannarelli





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 3000 Personnel

Title Proposed Revised SUPPORT STAFF WORKING HOURS, COMPENSATORY TIME, AND OVERTIME

Code po3413S

Status

Adopted November 22, 2016

Last Reviewed December 17, 2019

3413S - SUPPORT STAFF WORKING HOURS, COMPENSATORY TIME, AND OVERTIME
 
The assigned working hours of all support employees are established by the Director of Human ResourcesPersonnel in consultation with the
administrator who is the employee's immediate supervisor, and the corporation Treasurer.
 
Employees who wish to begin the work day earlier or later then the assigned hours for their position must receive prior written authorization
from their immediate administrative supervisor, who shall provide a copy of this authorization to the Director of Human ResourcesPersonnel.
 
Any employee who has a change in the number of hours worked per day, other than a temporary change, shall have his/her benefits for the
current year changed accordingly. The increase or decrease shall be based upon the new number of hours worked per day.
 
The workweek shall begin at 12:00 a.m. on Sunday and end at 11:59 p.m. on Saturday.
 
Overtime work is defined as time worked by non-exempt support employees in excess of forty (40) hours per workweek. Paid benefit days
shall be included in the calculation of time worked.
 
For all non-exempt support employees, pay for overtime work will normally be at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's
regular hourly rate; exceptions to the foregoing are set forth in employee handbooks.
 
In the event an employee is required to work on a day that would normally be a paid holiday for this employee, the employee will receive
holiday pay and, in addition, will be compensated for all hours worked on the holiday at two times their regular rate of pay.
 
Non-exempt employees who are required to work for more than their assigned hours during the workweek shall either be paid by claim for
said hours or, with the approval in writing from their immediate administrative supervisor and the Director of Business Operations/Designee,
may be awarded compensatory time off. Except in emergencies, non-exempt employees are not authorized to work beyond their assigned
hours without the approval of their immediate administrative supervisor and the Chief Financial OfficerDirector of Business
Operations/Designee.
 
A record of compensatory time awarded to a non-exempt employee shall be reported in a form acceptable to the /Business Office in a timely
fashion. Such records shall be maintained in the building and in the Business Office. Compensatory time is awarded hour for hour until the
employee has worked in excess of forty (40) hours during the workweek, and thereafter shall be awarded at the rate of one and one-half (1
1/2) hours for each hour worked in excess of forty (40) hours.
 
Compensatory time may be accrued up to thirtysixteen (3016) hours and must be used within the calendar year it has been earned;
exceptions to this may be authorized by the Chief Financial Officer.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Book Policy Manual

Section 3000 Personnel

Title Proposed Revised PROFESSIONAL STAFF CONTRACTS AND COMPENSATION PLANS (Administrators)

Code po3421.01A

Status

Adopted December 13, 2016

Last Revised December 12, 2017

Last Reviewed December 17, 2019

3421.01A - PROFESSIONAL STAFF CONTRACTS AND COMPENSATION PLANS (Administrators)
 
Annual Base Salary Amount
 
Each year two (2) representatives of the Board, two (2) representatives of the administrative staff, and the Superintendent and Assistant
Superintendent for Business shall meet and determine a recommendation to the Board regarding 1) annual base salary, 2) formula for
allocation of funds toward base salary, salary range, and fringe benefits, and 3) the funds for performance awards. A school year shall be July
1 through June 30.
 
Administrative Salary Schedule
 
Annually, the Superintendent shall recommend and the Board of School Trustees shall set the salaries of administrators employed by the
corporation. To determine salary, the Superintendent may assign each administrator to one of the salary ranges set forth below:
 
Class  
I $52,88051,894 $63,45662,273
II $63,45662,273 $84,60883,030
III $84,60883,030 $95,18493,409
IV $95,18493,409 $111,048108,977
V $111,048108,977 $132,200129,735
 
The Administrative Salary Schedule shall be reviewed periodically by three (3) representatives appointed by the Elkhart Principal’s
Association, three (3) members appointed by the Board of School Trustees, and the Superintendent.
 
Placement in the salary classification shall be based on the following considerations:
 

A. Other professional salaries in education
 

B. Other management salaries in public and private sectors
 

C. Changes in responsibility for specific assignments
 

D. Community expectations
 

E. Available corporation resources
 

F. Amount of money under the administrator’s direction
 

G. Level of decision-making
 

H. Expertise required
 

I. Amount of public contact
 

J. Time commitment
 

K. Prerequisites
 

L. Number of days on contract during the school year
 



M. Compensation rate of administrators in similar positions within the district
 

N. other appropriate factors

 
The Superintendent or his or her designee is directed by the Board to conduct a bi-annual analysis of administrative salaries to ensure pay
equity exists for those administrators subject to the provisions of this policy.
 
Salary Ranges, Placement, and Appeal
 
Annually the Superintendent, utilizing input from various sources where applicable, will establish a salary for each administrator. Such salary
shall be established within the salary classes on the Administrative Salary Schedule. After establishing such salaries, the Superintendent shall
report such recommended salaries to the Board.
 
An administrator who is not satisfied with their salary placement may schedule a meeting with the Superintendent to discuss his or her
concerns.
 
An administrator employed on a less than a twelve (12) month contract shall be eligible to be reimbursed for up to five (5) days for time
worked beyond the term of his or her contract. The rate of pay shall be $100 per day so long as the reason for working is shown on the list
below.
 

A. Required conference/training attendance
 

B. Interviewing prospective employees
 

C. Curriculum work
 

D. Other, with prior approval of the Superintendent

 
To receive reimbursement, the administrator must prepare a properly completed payroll form and submit it to the superintendent for
approval. Additional days beyond five (5) may be utilized only with prior approval of the superintendent.
 
Length of Administrative Contract
 
Each administrator who is to continue to be employed shall be recommended by the Superintendent for re employment. The length of
contract may be for a period not to exceed three (3) years with compensation review to be made on an annual basis.







 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Steven Thalheimer 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  December 17, 2019 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2019-20 school year: 

 

Elizabeth Byler   Woodland/Grade 4 

 

Beth Davis    Career Center/Public Safety 

 

b. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employee effective January 31, 2020: 

 

Trudi Alwine  North Side/Special Education  31 Years of Service 

 

c. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Amanda Collier   Woodland/Grade 5 

Began:  8/14/06    Resign:  12/31/19 

 

Kristofer  Gravender   Central/Language Arts 

Began:  8/11/08    Resign:  12/31/19 

 

 

 
 
 
CLASSIFIED 

 

a. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following classified employees: 

 

Jennifer Bonney   Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 10/16/19   PE: 12/11/19 

 

Kami Brenneman   Osolo/Social Worker 

Began: 10/18/19   PE: 12/13/19 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Lynn Buckley    Pinewood/Food Service 

Began: 10/21/19   PE: 12/16/19 

 

Judie James-Hernandez  Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 10/16/19   PE: 12/11/19 

 

Rocio Ortega    Bristol/Secretary 

Began: 10/21/19   PE: 12/16/19 

 

Allison Smith    Feeser/Social Worker 

Began: 10/21/19   PE: 12/16/19 

 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees: 

 

Danette Freel    Central/Food Services 

Began: 10/4/19    Resign: 12/13/19 

 

Alta Radelich    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 5/16/18    Resign: 12/20/2019 

 

Beth Wentland ECS/Data and Assessment Manager 

Began: 9/4/12 Resign: 1/3/20 

 

 

c. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following classified employees:   

 

Carol Hoff    Pierre Moran/Paraprofessional 

Began: 10/15/08   Retire: 12/20/19 

     YOS: 11 

 

Mellanie Miller   Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 

Began: 9/7/93    Retire: 12/20/19 

     YOS: 26 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	Minutes - Regular Meeting  - December 10, 2019
	Gift Acceptance - EACC
	Gift Acceptance - ECS
	Gift Acceptance - MHS
	Balance Sheet - November
	Resolution Rainy Day
	Resolution Year End
	Fundraisers
	Insurance Update
	Board Policy 3413S
	Board Policy 3421.01A
	Overnight Trip Request
	Conference Leave Requests
	Personnel Report

